GHANA



GAZETTE

Published by Authority

FRIDAY, 13TH AUGUST

1971

CONTENTS

	Page
Notice of Publication of Constitutional Instruments	476
Notice of Publication of Official Bulletins	476
Financial Statement-Balance Sheet as at 31st October, 1970	478
Revenue and Other Receipts—Month of October, 1970	480
Expenditure and Other Payments-Month of October, 1970	481
The National Weekly Lotto Results	486
Employment Advisory Committee—Kumasi	486
Appointment of a Notary Public	487
Ghana Standards—National Standards Board	487
College for Advanced Management-Fourth Senior Management Development	
Course—Ghana Institute of Management and Public Administration	487
Public Health Inspectors' Examination—West African Examination Board, Royal Society of Health	487
Results of the 1970 Principal Teachers' Examination	488
Loss of Credit Voucher-Ghana Railway and Ports	490
Loss of Store Licences	490
Loss of Bailiff's Receipt Book	490
Vacancies for Staff Training Officer (English)—Civil Service Training Centre	490
Vacancies for Staff Training Officer (General)—Civil Service Training Centre	491
Vacancy for Vice-Principal—Advanced Teacher Training College, Winneba	491
Vacancies for Assistant Publications Officer (Ewe) and (Nzema)-Bureau of Ghana	
Languages	491
Vacancy for Vice-Principal—Berekum Training College	492
Vacancies for Headmasters of Secondary Schools	492
Vacancy for Private Secretary-Ghana Institute of Management and Public Admi- nistration	493
Vacancy for Agricultural Engineer—Crops Research Institute—(Council for Scientific and Industrial Research)	493
Cancellation of Competitive Examination for Promotion to the grade of Senior	493
Teacher, 1972—The West African Examinations Council	473

No. 62

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION OF CONSTITUTIONAL INSTRUMENTS

The following Constitutional Instruments are published today, price 4Np each.

Commission of Inquiry (Tax Review) (Amendment) Instrument, 1971 (C.I. 23).

Commission of Inquiry (Duffor Traditional Area) (Amendment) Instrument, 1971 (C.I. 24).

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION OF OFFICIAL BULLETINS

LOCAL GOVERNMENT NO. 32

is published today, price 12Np.

Summary of Contents

	General											
Amendments—Amen Committee					of Lo				-	nent	277	
Imposition of Rates		••									278	
				B	ye-laws							
The Tepa Local Cou	ncil (K	iosk I	Keepers	s) Bye-	laws, 1	971					282	
The Nkawkaw Urb Bye-laws, 1971					ire/Cor			ort of	Chare	coal)	283	
The Nkawkaw Urban	a Cour	icil (Pa	alm-wi	ne and	Pito S	ellers)	Bye-lav	vs. 197			284	

LAND AND CONCESSIONS NO. 23

is published today, price 12Np.

Summary of Contents

Administrat	ion of .	Lands.	Act, 19	62 (Ac	t 123)-	-Notic	e of Oc	cupatio	on and	use of]	Land	193
List of Instru	uments	registe	red at 1	Kumasi	i ɗuring	g the m	onth of	Noven	nber to	Decem	iber.	
1070				• •							,	195

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL NO. 53

was published on Friday, 6th July, 1971, price 6Np.

Summary of Contents

General

COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL NO. 54

is published today, price 30Np.

Summary of Contents

General

Notice to Importers and Banks		••		• •	••			• •	1151
Notice to Importers			••		••	••		• •	1152
Correction Notice-Notice to In	nporte	rs No.							
Programme Loan No. 641-H-01	301 19	70	••	••	••	••	••	••	1152
Signing Powers-Ghana Commen	cial Ba	ank	••		••				1152
Savings for the week ended Satur	day, 3	lst Jul	y, 1971	Gha	na Sav	ings Ba	ank		1153
Sale of Unentered Articles-Tema	Port								1154

Companies		Page
Alteration in the Composition of Partners		1155
Companies entitled to commence business under the Companies Code, 1963	•••	1156
Trade Marks		
Applications for Registration of Trade Marks		1164
Particulars of Applications for Registration of Textile Designs		1171
Tenders		
Tenders for Various Contracts—Public Works Department		1180

477

BALANCE SHEET AS

31st October, 1969		LIA	BILITI	S				
	CONSOLIDATED FUND	2				NØ	NØ	NØ
NC 679 209 55	Revenue	an on at lat Tul	. 1070			549.586.589.17	1.00	1.00
466,638,298.55 1,586,806.81	General Revenue Balan Surplus to 31st October	ce as at 1st Jul	y, 1970			39,426,106.67		
		,			•		510,160,482.50	
465,051,491.74	Trust Funds					9,576,303.51		
13,375,033.22	Special Funds	** **				9,576,303.51 59,567,602.99		
65,447,606.23 8,145,362.67	Ghana Savings Bank					8,944,657.67		
752,369.38	Deposits Ghana Savings Bank Other					780,289.90		
					-		78,868,854.07	
87,720,371.50		1000 70				-		
4,888,433.58 673,033.81	NZ2,866,500 41% Stoc NZ1,000,000 4% Stock	1968_73		• ••		697,837.17		
1,268,749.05	NØ2,000,000 34 % Stoc	k 1969–74				1,360,125.34		
6,509,519.79	NØ2,000,000 31% Stoc NØ8,000,000 Developm	ent Fund Loan	n 1971-7	6	• •	7,067,181.07	0 125 142 59	
13,339,736.23	Loan Accounts				-		9,125,143.58	
10,00,00,00,00								
162,700,000.00	Domestic—Short-term Treasury Bills (Local) Bank of Ghana (Ways Bank of Ghana (Specia NØ28,333,333.00 Stabil NØ35,169,338.06 Stabil			• ••	••	172,700,000.00		
15,000,000.00	Bank of Ghana (Ways	and Means)	•• •	• ••	••	15,000,000.00 6,300,000.00		
6,300,000.00 28,155,137.57	NC28.333.333.00 Stabil	isation Loan	•• •		••	28.155.137.57		
	NØ35,169,338.06 Stabil	isation Loan				35,169,338.06		
					-		257,324,475.63	
212,155,137.57	Domestic-Medium and L	ong-term				26 220 002 26		
37,166,065.21 12,608,637.89	Compulsory Savings Ghana Cocoa Marketir	Board		• ••		36,329,893.26 12,608,637.89		
58,995,781.10	Ghana Cocoa Marketir Ghana Government Sto	ock (Compensa	tory)			53,172,534.54		
8,500,000.00	Ghana Railway and Po	rts Authority						
1,000,000.00	NØ1,000,000 5% Stock	1967-92	•• •	• ••	• • •	1,000,000.00		
6,000,000.00	NZ6.000.000 5 % Stock	1969-70				1,000,000.00		
2,000,000.00	NØ2,000,000 31 % Stoc	k 1969–74				2,000,000.00		
14,000,000.00	Ghana Railway and Po NØ1,000,000 5% Stock NØ1,000,000 4% Stock NØ2,000,000 3½% Stock NØ20,000,000 5½% Stoc NØ20,000,000 5½% Stoc NØ20,000,000 5½% Con NØ8,000,000 5½% (Dei NØ8,000,000 5½% (Dei NØ379,650 5% Stock 1	ck 1970-74 (Be	earer Bor	ıds)	• •	14,000,000.00		
20,833,333.33 20,000,000.00	NØ20,833,333.33 5 % 5	asury Loan 19	71-75	• ••	••	20,833,333.33		
8,000,000.00	NØ8,000,000 51% Con	version Stock 1	971-76	• • • •		8,000,000,00		
8,000,000.00	NØ8,000,000 5 % (Dev	elopment Fun	d) Loan	1971-76		8,000,000.00		
10,000,000.00 379,650.00	NØ379,650 5% Stock 1	oration (Regi	istered)	Stock 1	971–76	10,000,000 00		
20,000,000.00	NØ20.000.000 6% Stoc	k 1975–80			••	379,650.00		
21,000,000.00	NØ21,000,000 5% Fund	ding Stock 197	7-82 .			21,000,000,00		
10,000,000.00	NØ10,000,000 54 % Lib	eration Stock	1981-86			10,000,000.00		
50,000,000.00 20,000,000.00	NC20 000 000 51 % 612	ionistered) Stock	isterca)	Stock I	981-86	50,000,000.00		
20,000,000.00	NØ20.000.000 54 % (Re	gistered) Stock	1983-88		••	20,000,000.00		
40,000,000.00	NØ40,000,000 5% (Reg	istered) Stock	1984-89			40,000,000.00		
4,940,001.92	N/2379,650 5 % Stock 1 N/220,000,000 6 % Stock 1 N/210,000,000 5 % Funn N/210,000,000 5 % Fun N/250,000,000 5 % % [Reg N/220,000,000 5 % (Reg N/240,000,000 5 % (Reg N/230,000,000 5 % (Reg	istered) Stock	1985-89	••	••	28,520,822.60		
394,423,469.45	Foreign				-		405,344,871.62	
2,866,500.00	NØ2,866,500 41% Stoc	k 1960-70						
67,095,021.76	International Monetary	Fund				64,395,021.76		
4,184,772.89	Joint Consolidated Fun Joint Miscellancous Fu			• • • • •		-		
2,315,250.00	K.F.W. West German		••••••	• ••	••	5 353 (00 01		
	Counterpart Funds-		••••••	• ••	••	5,252,686.04		
7,141,997.37	U.S.S.R.		•• •			7,141,997.37		
1,103,249.41 2,287,214.00	Czechoslovakia	•• ••		• ••	••	1,103,169.41		
33,456,657.96	U.S.A			• ••		2,215,008.14 52,902,205.08		
	Canada					4,794,540.00		
1,758,000.00 1,012,000.00	West Germany United Kingdom	•• ••		• ••	••	10,424,804.49		
1,012,000.00	Onited Angdom		•• •	• ••	••	20,663,518.70	•	
123,220,663.39							168,892,950.99	0 205 017 20
3,000,000.00	CONTINUENCIES FUND						40	9,395,813.39 3,000,000.00
NØ368,807,886.40							NO	
Note _ Figures	in heavy type represent del	hit balances					N(24	12,395,813.39

Note.-Figures in heavy type represent debit balances.

THE TREASURY, ACCRA. 18th June, 1971.

AT 31st OCTOBER, 1970

st October, 1969	ASSETS					NC	NZ	NC
NØ	Charr					NØ	NØ	NØ
5,488,330.58	CASH With Banks and Sub-Accountants					9,519,747.48		
	With Crown Agents and in Joint Con	solidate	d Fun	d		78,405.83		
3,589,737.23	In Transit					4,428,255.77		
9,078,067.81					-		14,026,409.08	
	Investments							
5,543,125.02	General	••	••	••		-		
8,136,014.80	Trust Funds	••	••	••	•••	8,928,815.70		
8,749,816.31	International Monetary Fund	••	•••	••	••	8,749,816.31		
2,569,822.60	International Bank for Reconstruction	n and I	Develo	pment	••	2,297,482.60		
144,444.65	International Finance Corporation	••	••		••	144,444.65		
154,878.49	International Development Association	m	••		••	154,878.49		
4,392,105.08	African Development Bank	•••	••		••	4,392,105.08		
4,888,433.58	Sinking Fund NØ2,866,500 41% Stoc	k 1960-	-70			-		
673,033.81	Sinking Fund NØ1,000,000 4% Stock	: 1968–	73		••	697,837.17		
1,268,749.05	Sinking Fund NØ2,000,000 31% Stor	k 1969	-74			1,360,125.34		
6,509,519.79	Sinking Fund NØ8,000,000 Developm	nent Fu	nd Lo	an 197	1–76	7,067,181.07		
11,272,974.61	Statutory Boards and Corporations					11,272,920.86		
3,620,137.07	Companies					3,344,303.07		
_	Investment Reserve Fund					41,401,000.00		
57,923,054.86					-		89,810,910.34	
57,925,054.00	LOANS							
88,377,420.00	Ghana Railway and Ports Authority					88,377,420.00		
2,934,172.04	Local Authorities					2,934,172.04		
25,361,830.60				••	•••	25,361,830.60		
		••	•••		••	1,333,333.00		
1,333,333.00	National Investment Bank	•••		•••	•••			
87,166,377.03	Statutory Boards and Corporations	••			•••	92,339,940.49		
854,000.00	Companies	••	•••	•••	••	852,400.00		
6,402,275.53	Miscellaneous	•••	•••	••	••	6,396,910.93	217,596,007.06	
212,429,408.20						10.2 201	217,590,007.00	
	Advances							
5,909,973.64	Staff					7,800,446.07		
55,152,547.36	Agencies and Foreign Governments					56,304,453.49		
28,314,834.53	Suspense					26,857,587.35		
20,014,004100	- approver the tree to the						90,962,486.91	
89,377,355.53								412,395,813
1Ø368,807,886.40							N	¢412,395,813

This Balance Sheet shows Assets, Liabilities and Surplus Balances of the Government which are represented by cash and investments or which are current accounts due to be cleared by cash payments.

1

It does not include:--(a) Arrears of Revenue
(b) Unpaid Bills
(c) Contingent Liabilities in respect of guarantees.

DAN BAISIE Controller and Accountant-General

CENTRAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE, 1970-71

REVENUE AND OTHER RECEIPTS-MONTH OF OCTOBER, 1970

					Estimates for 1970–71	Receipts for October, 1970	<i>Receipts for</i> <i>period</i> 1–7–70 <i>to</i> 31–10–70	Receipts for period 1–7–69 to 31–10–69
REVENUE								
TAXES ON PRODUCTION AND EX	PENDI	TURE			NØ	NØ	NØ	NØ
Import Duties					123,800,000	10,016,470.04	30,140,603.23	21,124,286.28
Export Duties (Except Cocc	oa)				800,000	58,813.67		303,594.73
Cocoa Duty	••				114,800,000	10,043,620.97		15,610,740.07
Excise and Local Duties				•••	32,000,000	2,010,616.66		10,329,465.44
Licences		••	••	••	6,000,000	394,886.39		1,655,134.40
Purchase Tax	•••	••	••	••	3,100,000	153,101.33	942,898.67	1,106,774.84
Miscellaneous	••	••		••	35,600,000	3,624,752.94	11,513,249.43	11,621,178.03
TAXES ON INCOME AND PROPER	TY							
Income Tax:								
Personal					27,800,000	2,145,204.96	8,776,774.70	7,862,310.34
Company			••		36,750,000	502,873.69	23,824,326.08	22,970,969.12
Co-operatives	••			••	35,000	920.29	4,022.29	11,051.98
Property Tax	••	••	•••		20,000	5,132.55	274,071.65	22,966.24
Excess Profit	••	••		••	240,000	6,380.48	55,282.58	238,473.42
Capital Gains Tax	••	••	••	•••	-	0.05	1,454.79	-
Estate Duty	••	••	••	••	6,000	1,160.00	18,614.04	3,383.01
Minerals Duty	••	••	••	••	4,000,000	10.69	764,124.82	670,117.05
FINES, PENALTIES AND FORFEITUR			••	••	1,103,000	99,395.76	361,116.20	240,227.86
SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES	••	••	••	••	14,036,240	1,349,503.21	5,938,927.38	3,588,895.75
RENTS OF GOVERNMENT LANDS,	EIC.	••	•••	••	1,555,780	161,767.06	425,484.74	201,599.10
FEES AND CHARGES	••	••	••	••	3,533,900	247,139.58	890,608.53	1,064,604.12
Deserves as a sum	••	••	••	••	12,000,000	535,561.83	11,147,139.85	5,075,951.69
TRANSFERS BETWEEN GOVERNMEN	 T ACT	NCIES	••	••	2,700,000	23.25	2,463.24	737.07
GRANTS	I AUL		••		808,700	314,487.04	1,093,736.86	869,535.85
MICOSILANDOLIS	••	••	•••	••	5,255,100	41 741 00	-	-
WINSCELLANEOUS ,, ,, ,,		••	••	••	3,233,100	41,741.89	594,826.80	1,098,692.76
Total	••	••	••	N¢	Z425 654,720	NØ31,713,564.33	NØ153,185,039.86	NØ105,670,685.15
OTHER REC	EIPTS	;						
INVESTMENTS						281 602 00		
OTHER GOVERNMENTS						381,692.00	22,590,271.42	3,122,466.65
REMITTANCES						186.00 25,923,561.70	2,748.73	1,097.31
DEPOSITS						6,422,437.89	111,412,618.50	104,388,074.07
ADVANCES						4,691,855.30	23,665,561.56	13,037,421.97
FUNDED RESERVES						858,859.25	18,412,723.61	17,756,660.37
LOAN ACCOUNTS						1,807,529.31	2,864,556.21	7,421,917.86
							8,383,528.03	27,354,493.92
TOTAL	•••				•• ••	NØ40,086,121.45	NØ187,332,008.06	NØ173,082,132.15
TOTAL RECEIPTS						NØ71,799,685.78	NØ340,517,047.92	NØ278,752,817.30

THE TREASURY, ACCRA. 18th June, 1971.

DAN BAISIE Controller and Accountant-General

CENTRAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE, 1970-71 EXPENDITURE AND OTHER PAYMENTS-MONTH OF OCTOBER, 1970

		nates for	Expenditure for	Expenditure for period 1–7–70 to	Expenditure for period 1-7-69 to
NON-STATUTORY EXPENDITURE	19	970-71	October, 1970	31-10-70	31-10-69
MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE		NØ	NØ	NØ	NØ
Recurrent Development		75,000 70,050	15,685.86 21,089.31	72,333.91 130,159.00	70,099.13 309,926.58
TRAINING AND MANPOWER					
Recurrent		80,000 1 5,080	68,263.78 2,493.36	213,227.35 9,627.19	181,589.61 5,430.00
AGRICULTURAL ECONOMICS					
Recurrent		10,000 13,930	49,372.19 2,320.85	181,992.61 3,285.62	157,273.20 6,699.11
PRODUCE INSPECTION Recurrent	99	0.000	86,712.49	321,133.03	307,182.72
Development		8,000	-	-	
IRRIGATION, RECLAMATION AND DRAINAGE				*	
Recurrent		70,000 16,200	30,584.11 67,483.85	117,014.90 209,499.50	127,851.20 212,404.88
COCOA DIVISION			01,105105	200,0000	
Recurrent		00,000	505,224.57	2,113,283.49	2,057,409.97
Development	4,31	3,320	219,297.97	651,174.80	246,633.41
FISHERIES DIVISION Recurrent	41	0.000	21 975 10	121,073.75	114,794 .80
Development		35,500	31,875.19	121,073.75	
Animal Health					
Recurrent	El)0,000)8,400	56,410.02 5,410.10	217,123.36 6,636.40	179,111.26 2,455.10
Mechanisation and Transport	50	,400	5,410.10	0,030.40	2,455110
Recurrent	1,0"	70,000	88,060.94	349,345.83	323,014.29
Development	50	06,000	-	-	9,902.66
AGRICULTURAL SETTLEMENT Recurrent	51	0000	40 500 77	133,126.60	148,941.20
Development		00,000 22,680	40,500.77 6,035.29	15,113.88	10,922.52
Animal Husbandry					
Recurrent		90,000	51,927.40	184,403.97	171,216.75 105,837.77
CROP PRODUCTION	0	46,570	7,737.40	20,117.62	105,657.77
Recurrent	1,9	00,000	176,141.81	605,565.70	549,889.58
Development		74,320	30,363.62	40,799.31	32,665.44
AGRICULTURAL UNIT (WORKERS BRIGADE)					1 (05 530 00
Recurrent	3,7	00,000	233,333.00	933,332.00	1,695,720.00
LANDS AND MINERAL RESOURCES					an and a court
Recurrent		00,000	146,158.27	719,717.34	284,228.99
Development	2,5	92,510	330,804.81	943,990.81	_
LANDS DIVISION Recurrent	4	40,000	41,114.12	159,410.10	141,012.34
Development		74,700	-	-	122,646.39
SURVEY DIVISION		40.000	51 005 CO	006 600 40	194,351.64
Development		40,000 28,500	51,895.60 7,035.27	206,620.40 17,933.14	50,133.72
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY					100 mile 100
Recurrent		00,000 91,520	42,333.44 5,326.29	149,558.59 36,719.15	160,037.65 30,740.00
Development	2	- 1,020	3,320.23	50,717.15	30,740100
Recurrent	1	00,000	7,136.50	27,737.18	16,667.45
Development		3,000	-		-

						Estimator for	Expenditure for	Expenditure for period 1-7-70 to	Expenditure for period 1-7-69 to
NON-STATU	TORY	EXPEN	ודוס	RE		Estimates for 1970–71	October, 1970	31-10-70	31-10-69
MINISTRY OF FORESTR			5110				NG	NØ	NØ
Recurrent	Y					NØ 55,000	NØ 1,975.70	9.975.29	26,473.59
Development .	• ••	•••					-	-	-
FORESTRY DEPARTMEN	т								
Recurrent Development				 	::	1,154,000 1,874,870	95,999.99 —	365,279.69	333,404.57
GAME AND WILDLIFE									
Recurrent Development	•••	 			::	350,000 167,820	21,929.37 3,476.59	93,327.28 14,052.78	83,801.28 6,843.08
TRADE DIVISION									
Recurrent Development		••				885,000	66,211.43	248,474.61	163,568.10
-	••	••		••	•••	633,100	77,500.00	77,500.00	15,164.02
INDUSTRIES DIVISION Recurrent						290.000	20 497 12	92.045.00	01.511.10
Development			•••			280,000 675,180	20,487.13 12,863.56	83,945.62 28,908.15	84,744.13 1,623,232.95
MINISTRY OF WORKS									-,,,,
Recurrent		••				1,800,000	444,987.96	586,942.54	477,866.45
Development		••	•••	••		10,949,600	-	6,630.00	4,013,100.18
PUBLIC WORKS DEPAR	TMENT								
Recurrent Development	••	••	••	••	••	9,500,000 27,820,260	600,587.05 1,364,352.86	2,124,290.58	1,981,643.78
SERVICES UNDER MINIS	TRY OF V	NOPES	••	••	••	27,020,200	1,504,552.00	3,676,760.49	3,418,779.00
Recurrent Development					•••	480,000	13,643.10	67,133.88	79,685.03
MINISTRY OF HOUSING	AND TO							_	_
Recurrent Development		•••	•••	•••	-::	120,000	8,648.86	31,135.99	-
TOWN AND COUNTRY I	PLANNING	DEPAR	RTMEN	г					
Recurrent Development	••	••	•••	••	••	470,000 120,000	38,405.47	121,163.97	-
PARKS AND GARDENS		••	••	•••	••	120,000	16,681.00	17,270.56	-
Recurrent						700,000	61,775.22	224.145.00	
Development		••				210,420	10,223.41	224,145.39 19,767.81	229,007.65 16,392.93
MINISTRY OF COMMUNI	CATION								10,572.75
Recurrent Development	••		••	••		450,000	37,205.79	117,250.86	107,674.88
CIVIL AVIATION		••	••	••	••	753,660	127,105.65	563,571.85	91,300.00
Recurrent						880,000	99 000 (7		
Development		••				2,514,540	88,203.67 33,163.71	359,277.57 33,163.71	265,042.88
METEOROLOGICAL DEPA	RTMENT						,	55,105.71	109,372.69
Recurrent Development	••	••				450,000	34,314.50	133,680.15	128,545.18
	••	••	••	••	•••	357,200	2,231.00	6,998.56	6,782.99
POSTS AND TELECOMMU Recurrent		5				6,880,000			
Development				••		5,509,500	852,851.69 60,245.14	2,935,730.72	1,734,668.37
MINISTRY OF EDUCATIO	N, CULT	URE AN	d Spo	RTS				71,347.75	292,769.48
Recurrent		••				2,525,000	182,661.30	770,264.67	
Development	••	••	••	••		652,160	-	9,813.00	16,176,614.23 465,631.59
GENERAL EDUCATION Recurrent						54.000.000			400,001.00
Development	•••	••			**	54,000,000 5,250,580	5,696,304.92 124,204.70	17,354,166.88	-
TECHNICAL EDUCATION	AND VO					,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	127,204.10	359,168.07	-
Recurrent						2,000,000	153,860.84	600 cm	
Development	•••	••	••	••		1,662,940	42,690.04	528,620.94 101,790.04	484,915.69
MINISTRY OF HEALTH									133,249.39
Recurrent Development		•••		•••		21,956,000 9,530,440	2,414,473.10	7,288,195.65	5,759,835.35
						2,230 ,44 0	210,397.64	666,843.46	1,030,918.66

							Estimates for 1970–71	Expenditure for October, 1970	Expenditure for period 1–7–70 to 31–10–70	Expenditure for period 1-7-69 to 31-10-69
NON-STATU	TORY	EXPE	ENDIT	URE					and the second	
LABOUR AND CO-OF Recurrent Development	PERATIV	'ES					NØ 500,000 37,460	NØ 46,854.77	NØ 144,835.27	NØ 138,342.66 36,120.00
LABOUR DEPARTME Recurrent	NТ 						580,000	36,830.84	148,903.68	150,339.63
Development Co-operatives Recurrent			•••				57,600 280,000	 21,525.83		93,920.69
Development	•••			•••			58,700	1,762.09	7,647.70	2,822.46
MINISTRY OF YOUT Recurrent Development	11 AND 		DEVEI	OPMEN	۲T ۰۰		1,010,000	84,347.85	98,256. 99	15,633.83
RURAL DEVELOPME	NT DEI	PARTME	INT							
Recurrent Development	•••	.:				::	1,359,000 2,628,000	104,248.50 4,695.06	650,537.54 6,808.78	Ξ
YOUTH SERVICES D Recurrent	EPARTN	IENT					250,000	_	1,555.85	_
Development	••	••	••	••			-	-	-	-
SOCIAL WELFARE Recurrent Development							1,150,000 82,570	70,845.99	260,859.90 50.00	656,447.33 52,645.65
MINISTRY OF INTER	IOR									
Recurrent Development	··· ··	::	 		•••	•••	174,000 128,000	16,599.83	62,947.00 157.00	64,172.11
POLICE SERVICE Recurrent							16,060,000	1 122 406 82	4,936,504.78	5,100,423.86
Development	•••				•••		4,025,600	1,422,496.83 73,480.00	114,080.00	166,326.11
PRISONS SERVICE Recurrent Development	.:					•••	3,028,000 199,250	261,420.63 2,610.00	879,332.28 2,610.00	1,100,679.45 13,231.72
NATIONAL FIRE SER	VICE						The second s			
Recurrent Development		··· ··		··· ··	··· ··	::	650,000 94,200	60,368.35	224,753.35	319,069.65
MINISTRY OF LOCAL Recurrent	, ADMI	NISTRA	TION				3,400,000	619,735.00	1,205,554.48	678,203.28
Development		••	••		•••		959,990	25,793.00	28,212.50	53,955.25
OFFICE OF THE PRES		••				•••	215,000	14,937.27	52,310.09	-
Development Office of the Prim	 IE MIN	 ISTER	••	•••	••	••	Long De La	-	-	_
Recurrent Development	•••	•••	•••		::		6,903,000 9,050,100	560,431.11 593,737.40	1,840,720.84 758,650.76	956,429.67 29,000.00
OFFICE OF THE GOV		NT MA					252.000	10 647 47	49,686.02	44,960.53
Recurrent Development				•••	•••		252,000	12,547.47	49,030.02	44,900.55
REGIONAL ORGANIS	ATION						3,040,000	222,828.03	845,173.39	727,547.48
Development	••	••	•••	•••	•••	•••	3,518,400	58,423.48	133,693.31	162,476.87
ESTABLISHMENT SEC Recurrent Development	RETARI	AT 		•••			400,000 57,000	30,198.89	101,067.18	110,336.43 16,984.00
PUBLIC SERVICES CO										
Recurrent Development		 	::		::		180,000 303,800	14,665.60	67,731.86 43,936.05	52,176.72 56,400.00
THE NATIONAL ASS Recurrent	EMBLY						1,020,000	54,995.63	304,156.20	136,612.43
Development		••			••	••	510,620	2,514.13	6,451.20	-

						Estimates for	Expenditure for	Expenditure for period 1-7-70 to	Expenditure for period 1-7-69 to
NON-STATUTO	RY EX	PEND	ITURE			197071	October, 1970	31-10-70	31-10-69
NATIONAL FAMILY PLAN						NØ	NØ	NØ	NØ
Recurrent						320,000		80,000.00	1452
Development	•••	••			••	-	-	-	-
MINISTRY OF DEFENCE						26 520 000	2 724 270 70	10 100 565 55	7 774 001 17
Recurrent Development				•••		36,520,000 9,000,000	2,724,370.78 230,010.45	10,499,565.55 277,730.80	7,774,281.17 1,760,863.64
ELECTORAL COMMISSION							,		.,,
Recurrent						-	-	-	514,625.05
Development	••	••	••	••	••	-	-	-	1,600.00
CULTURAL AFFAIRS									
Recurrent Development	••	••		•••	•••	Ξ		_	294,751.77 281,060.00
Auditor-General									201,000.00
Recurrent						-	-		313,076.86
Development		• •			•••	-	-	-	-
PHYSICAL PLANNING									
Recurrent	••	••	••	••	••	-	_	-	128,062.82
Development	••	•••	•••	••					
TOTAL	••	••		••	NØ	2411,284,250	NØ28,002,543.95	NØ88,520,341.59	NØ83,771,936.83
					_				
STATUTORY	EXPE	NDITI	JRE						
PRESIDENT						54,000	-	6,979.05	-
AUDITOR-GENERAL						1,100,000	82,156.57	319,989.16	2,754.50
COMPENSATION, GRATI	JITIES,	AND	OTHER	Ret	IRING				460 000 44
ALLOWANCES	••	••	••	••	••	2,400,000	127,417.15	513,434.09	462,283.41
PUBLIC DEBT CHARGES						22 640 000	1 090 294 10	9 407 241 04	6,448,787.63
Funded	••	••	••	••	••	22,640,000	1,989,284.10	8,497,241.94	0,448,787.03
Miscellaneous					•••	68,137,000	448,962,74	10,346,535.78	10,118,991.60
PENSIONS AND GRATUIT						10,800,000	1,079,231.24	5,372,299.15	3,223,606.85
JUDICIAL SERVICES						300,000	31,708.90	81,980.43	45,717.52
PUBLIC SERVICES COMM	ISSION					40,000	-	6,40	7,800.00
ELECTORAL COMMISSION						1,900,000	21,573.33	100,125.60	_
					-				
TOTAL					N	2108,426,000	NØ3,780,334.03	NØ25,238,591.60	NØ20,311,941.51
					_				
OTUTO	043214	CAITE							
OTHER	rAIMI	EIN [S					100 360 60	17 603 365 66	2 000 010 45
INVESTMENTS	••		••	•••	•••	•• ••	429,359.68	17,693,265.66 9,468.44	3,009,910.45 18,651.30
OTHER GOVERNMENTS		••					541.30 27,753,815.05	115,178,645.31	106,388,763.26
REMITTANCES				•••			5,830,699.25	21,670,741.40	24,646,504.21
DEPOSITS	••		•••	•••		•• ••	5,662,255.90	25,852,117.42	33,664,664.60
ADVANCES					•••		6,938,345.93	26,184,718.51	1,728,475.77
FUNDED RESERVES	••	••	••	••	••	•• ••	302,750.00	10,789,594.72	501,714.44
LOAN ACCOUNTS		••	••	••	• •			101107107172	
TOTAL							NØ46,917,767.11	NØ217,378,551.46	NØ169,958,684.03
TOTAL PA	YMENTS				••		NØ78,700,645.09	NØ331,137,484.65	NØ274,042,562.37

Note .--- Figures in heavy Type represent Credit balances.

THE TREASURY, ACCRA. 18th June, 1971. DAN BAISIE Controller and Accountant-General

404			UL	IANA	Unc	LITE, ISTRICT				
						Estimates for 1970–71	Expenditure for October, 1970	Expenditure for period 1-7-70 to 31-10-70	Expenditure for period 1-7-69 to 31-10-69	
NON-ST	ATUTOR	Y EXPE	NDITU	JRE				NØ	NØ	
OFFICE OF THE CH Recurrent	THEF OF ST	ATE PROT	OCOL			NØ 320,000	NØ 69,221.59	113,311.40	196,560.66	
Development						-	-		_	
NATIONAL COUNCI	L FOR HI	GHER ED	UCATIO	N				5,689,579.83	4,647,864.79	
Recurrent Development		: ::	••	••	•••	17,165,000 4,703,450	1,474,606.66 76,162.00	137,335.00	195,620.11	
SCHOLARSHIPS SEC	RETARIAT							1 706 029 24	1,665,866.87	
Recurrent Development					•••	9,100,000	1,143,804.16	1,796,028.24		
NATIONAL ARCHIV	ES								12 200 10	
Recurrent				- •		140,000	10,900.44 1,374.49	46,102.26 2,084.49	42,300.10 3,529.21	
Development		• ••	••	••	••	117,810	1,374.47	2,004.49	5,527.21	
MINISTRY OF INFO	RMATION					6,590,000	522,382,62	2,092,218.86	1,702,513.49	
Recurrent Development				•••		1,572,000	40,000.00	40,000.00	-	
ATTORNEY-GENERA										
Recurrent						470,000	34,987.58	137,564.21	150,681.98	
Development					••	-	-	-	-	
JUDICIAL SERVICE						2 000 000	103 307 40	688,455.64	520,522.71	
Recurrent Development		• ••				2,000,000 646,000	183,387.40	088,433.04	11,480.00	
REGISTRAR-GENERA						,				
Recurrent Development					•••	92,000	7,439.92	28,723.12	25,827.29	
MINISTRY OF FORE		IRS								
Recurrent Development				::		7,450,000 826,000	433,059.97	1,245,139.60	1,120,846.77	
FINANCE DIVISION										
Recurrent Development	•• •		•••	••	••	778,000 6,042,050	20,647.64	158,405.14	80,356.05	
SERVICES UNDER F	INANCE									
Recurrent Development	••••••	· ··	•••	••		13,823,000	382,152.61	1,337,535.52	675,430.42	
CONTROLLER AND	ACCOUNT	ANT-GENI	RAL'S	DEPART	IMENT					
Recurrent			••		•••	1,500,000	133,152.93	480,642.78	478,424.51	
CUSTOMS AND EXC		RTMENT							_	
Recurrent						1,020,000	72,179.87	308,702.06	407,179.78	
Development	•• •	• ••	••	••	••	141,930	2,031.19	2,031.19	4,580.00	
CENTRAL REVENUE	DEPARTN	IENT								
Recurrent Development		• ••		•••	•••	1,250,000 60,900	91,695.46	347,147.42	341,016.21	
DEPARTMENT OF N		OTTERIE			••	00,900	-		-	
Recurrent			, 			850,000	46,852.11			
Development						215,000	40,032.11	123,467.39	115,500.10	
PENSIONS AND NAT	IONAL IN	SURANCE						-	-	
Recurrent Development		· ··	••	•••	•••	60,000	1,209.43	5,719.37	10,391.00	
GHANA SAVINGS B	ANK .						_	-	-	
Recurrent Development					•••	65,000	3,434.08	15,409.35	15,018.60	
ECONOMIC PLANNIN		0N					-	-	-	
Recurrent						4,714,000	400,897.34			
Development	••••••		••	••	••	8,147,270	160,346.02	1,478,256,34	1,257,948.79	
CENTRAL BUREAU	OF STATIS	HCS						198,087.26	400,664.86	
Recurrent Development	••••••	• ••	••	••	••	1,200,000	90,043.34	262 952 10	600 00C 03	
Development	•• ••		••	••	•••		-	262,853.62	229,086.93 104,529.00	
									104,527.00	

APPOINTMENT OF A NOTARY PUBLIC

(Sgd.) E. A. L. BANNERMAN Chief Justice

In exercise of the powers vested in me by section 1 of the Notaries Public Act, 1960 (Act 26), I, EDMUND ALEXANDER LANQUAYE BANNERMAN, Chief Justice of the Superior Court of Judicature of Ghana, do hereby appoint JOSEPH COBBLAH ARMAH, a legal Practitioner in Ghana, to be a Notary Public for Ghana to discharge the duties assigned to such office by the Laws of Ghana or by the practice of Commerce.

Given under my hand at the Law Courts Building, Accra, this 9th day of August, In the Year of Our Lord One Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-one (1971).

J. OFORI-BOATENG Deputy Judicial Secretary, Superior Court of Judicature

NATIONAL STANDARDS BOARD

GHANA STANDARDS

Number CP: 102: 1971 *Title* Code of Practice of Appearance of Woven and Knitted Fabrics.

GHANA INSTITUTE OF MANAGEMENT AND PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION

COLLEGE FOR ADVANCED MANAGEMENT—FOURTH SENIOR MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT COURSE

The College for Advanced Management, Ghana's Administrative Staff College, will offer its Fourth Senior Management Development Course from October 10, 1971. The course will be fully residential and will be limited to 30 participants. The course programme is structured in two parts:

Part I-for 4 weeks from October 10 to November 6, 1971

Part II-for 6 weeks from January 9 to February 19, 1972.

The two parts are complementary and are to be taken together.

Qualifications.—Participants who should be sponsored by their Organisations are normally expected to be in the age range 32 to 48 years. The basic qualification for admission is significant practical managerial or administrative experience with a potential for holding still higher responsibility in the future. No particular minimum academic education is prescribed, but nominees must have good command of both written and spoken English.

Closing Date.—Further information and nomination forms are obtainable from the Director, Ghana Institute of Management and Public Administration, Greenhill, P.O. Box 50, Achimota. Completed nomination forms should be received not later than 16th August, 1971.

WEST AFRICAN EXAMINATION BOARD—ROYAL SOCIETY OF HEALTH PUBLIC HEALTH INSPECTORS' EXAMINATION

It is hereby notified for general information that the Royal Society of Health Diploma Examination is now scheduled to be held on 18th to 24th August, 1971.

THE NATIONAL WEEKLY LOTTO RESULTS

It is hereby certified that a National Weekly Lotto Draw was held on Saturday, 7th August, 1971 in accordance with the provisions of the National Weekly Lotto Act, 1961 and the Regulations published thereunder and that the following numbers were drawn in successive order:

2-37-30-81-29

V. O. HUTCHISON Director of National Lotteries

EMPLOYMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE-KUMASI

It is hereby notined for general information that the Chief Labour Officer has under paragraph 7 of the Labour Decree (N.L.C.D. 157) appointed the undermentioned to be members of the Kumasi Employment Advisory Committee:—

EMPLOYERS' REPRESENTATIVES

- Mr. Karikari Mensah, Ghana Manufacturers' Association Representative, c/o Post Office Box 3266, Kumasi—Tel. 5488.
- Mr. J. A. Danso, Regional Manager, State Construction Corporation, Post Office Box 900, Kumasi.
- Mr. J. A. Adomako, Chamber of Commerce Representative, c/o Post Office Box 514, Kumasi.

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVES

- Mr. A. K. Efah, Regional Secretary, Trades Union Congress, Post Office Box 1926, Kumasi.
- Mr. P. K. Owusu-Dame, Senior Industrial Relations Officer, C. & B.T.W.U. of T.U.C., c/o T.U.C. Regional Secretariat, Post Office Box 1926, Kumasi.
- Mr. S. K. Afful, Industrial Relations Officer, General Agricultural Workers Union of T.U.C., c/o T.U.C. Regional Secretariat, Post Office Box 1926, Kumasi.

6th August, 1971.

C. Y. TUBLU for Chief Labour Officer

	Name									Regd. No.			Index No.
17	Mills Appe Grace									-			1226
	Mills, Anne Grace	•••	••	•••	••	••	••		••	3650/G/39	••	••	
	Mills-Robertson, Henry Acqu	an		•••	••	••	* •	••	••	10144/52	••	••	1228
	Myles-Mills, John	••	۰.	••	••	••	••	••	••	2318/59	••	••	1232
	Nodzi, Dickson Kwami Foli	••							••	7046/E/49	••	••	1239
	Ntow, Wilson Anoff	••				+ -			••	451/W/53	••	••	1241
	Nutakor, J. Kodzo Afagbemi								• •	7518/R/49	••		1242
	Nyame, Philip Attie	••	• •		+ •			• •	• •	9092/50	••	••	1243
	Obeng, Kwaku Victor	••	••						• •	7195/49	••	••	1247
	Oblitey, Alfred Commey	••	••						••	4336/M/42	••	4. •	1249
	Offei, Emmanuel Larbi	••	••			6 -			• •	5667/S/46	••		1251
	Ohene, Opokua Christiana	•••	••						••	4519/G/43	••	۰.	1254
	Okycre, George Odoi	• •					••		••	5613/46	••		1255
	Osafo, Nyarko Florence	••	••	• •						355/S/53	••	••	1258
	Osei, Afriyie Margaret	• •	•••						•••	9015/50	••	••	1259
	Oteng, Patience Yawa	• •					••	• •	••	2154/57	••	••	1265
	Otsyina, Dingle Vincent Yao								••	1064/53	••	••	1266
63.	Owusu-Agyarkwa, Gladys	••							••	1394/54	••		1271
	Rockson, J. K. G.	••	••	••						8138/W/50	••		1282
	Stafford, Ernest Ben.	••			• •	• •	• •	• •	••	5457/W/46	••		1294
	Seshie, Linus Clutse M.	• •	••	••	• •		• •	• •	••	8851/G/51	••		1295
67.	Tettey, Mathew Anku	••	••	• •	• •	••		••	••	6184/47	•••		1299
68.	Tsorhe, Solomon Kofi	••	• •		• •	• •	• •		••	229/51	••	•••	1301
69.	Van-Der-Puije, Rebecca	• •			••		• •	• •	••	8301/W/51	••	••	1303
70.	Vulo, Samuel Francis		• •	• •		• •	• •	• •		2990/E/36	••		1304
	Whyte, John Henry		••							5198/45	• •	• •	1305
72.	Wuddah, Ellen Theresa	• •	••	••	• •	• •	••	••		5498/46	••	• •	1307
73.	Yaadar, Michael David	••	• •		••	• •	•••			6069/47	••	••	1308
74	Dedume, F. Seth Kwadzo			• •	• •					1053/S/53	••	••	1321
75.	Buatin, Daniel Kobina					• •			•••	1443/58	••		1332
76.	Afonu, Benard Kenneth	••	• •			••				5526/46	• •	• •	1018
77.	Agra, Albert Mawutor K.			• •		• •				566/53	••	••	1025
	Agyare, Maxwell Frank		• •				•••			5587/46		••	1316
	Agyemang, Emmanuel S.									7418/49	••		1026
	Akono, Edwin Kissiedu									5590/46			1033
	Amedzi, Lawrence							• •		4696/44	••	••	1052
	Ankrah, Emmanuel Adjah							•••		6793/55	••	•••	1065
	Ashietey, Comfort Cecilia							• •		3493/55	••		1088
	Boison, Jemima (Mrs.)									6236/48			1123
85	Coleman, Eunice Winfred									10042/52	••		1128
86	Donkor, Francis Kwabena							• -		5731/47	•••		1313
87	Dua, Sampson Paul			• •			• •			4628/44	• •	• •	1149
	Eshun, F. K					• •				6711/48	• •		1156
	Gbekorbu, Linus K. N.						•			1826/61		• 4	1168
	Hesse, Christian Sabah A.					• •				5640/46		• 11	1179
	Koranteng, Emmanuel G.									OCACIES		• 4	1186
	Matanawui, Doris Annie									1000/00			1017
02	Moore, Sophia Evelyn					• 1				0000110		• 9	1000
93	Obeng, Eudocia Asamaniwa									4075145			10.10
94	Ofosu-Apea, James Afari									0662161			1262
93	Owusu-Ofori, Alex Kwasi									0441461			1272
										C00/147			1070
	Quidoo, Victoria	•••								1072144			10/2
	Osci-Tutu, Mary	••							•••	CO 4 6 147			1101
99	. Renner, Aku Jessie	••			••		••		••			_	

S. A. A. DJOLETO for Chief Education Officer

RESULTS OF THE 1970 PRINCIPAL TEACHERS' EXAMINATION

The following candidates who sat for the Principal Teachers' Examination in August, 1970 were successful.

The Ministry of Education wishes to make it clear, however, that as the practice has been, in addition to having been successful in the examination, promotion to the grade of Principal Teacher depends on a satisfactory inspection report on the teacher's work.

	They are:											
	Name									Regd. No.		Index No.
1.	Abbey, Christiana Dzagble									1731/60	••	1002
2	Achampong, Andrews Boaky	ye			••			• •		9747/52	••	1006
3	Acquah, Salome Edith	• •			• •			• •	• •	4214/W/42		1008
4	Adjagely-Doyi, Henry Kwan	ne						• •		3120/R/55		1010
5.	Adubaw, Bernard Esuon K.		• •					•••		9259/52		1014
	Adu-Gyamfi, Kwadwo				• •					1039/59	••	1015
	Adzimah, Kofi Gerard									6158/R/47		1017
	Agbozo, Emmanuel Ampron	g								2300/58		1023
	Agidi, Peter Kwasi		• •							7187/49	••	1024
	Ahenkora, Stephen Nuama			• •						5072/S/45		1029
	Akiti, Mathias Kwame	• •	• •			• •		• •		6516/48		1032
	Akuamoah, Kofi Appah						• •			165/NT/49		1035
	Amable, A. Y									5275/E/46		1039
14.	Ampadu, Joseph Appa									5836/G/47		1043
	Amoabeng, Isaiah Ohene									1615/54		1044
	Amoah-Mensah, Andrew									5937/47		1046
	Ampomah, Robert Richard						• •			7731/W/50		1053
	Amponsah, Victor Emmanue	el 🛛		• •	• •			• •		5158/45		1055
	Anim, Okordich Augusta	• •								9432/52		1063
	Annan, Joseph Kwahin									5826/47		1066
	Asare-Kwao, Lawrence Eben	ezer		• •			• •			1059/M/53		1085
	Asenso, Jonas Kwabena									5212/45		1087
	Attah, Godfried Guggisberg									1026/59		1094
	Aye, Edward Asare									5082/45		1102
	Baaku, Anku Philip									8765/51	••	1102
	Benson, Stephene Edumadzi									4883/W/45	••	1112
	Bernasko, Bertha									2000100	•••	
	Boateng, Martin Christopher									3776/C/40 5782/W/47	••	1113
	Boateng, Mary								••	10160/W/52	••	1118
	Boateng, Seth Opone							•••	••	455710140	••	1119
	Dadzie, Yusuf Ibrahim							••	••		••	1120
	Dagb:, Kodzo Lawrence							••	••	1	••	1131
	De-Heer, Yarhans Cremer							••	••	10019/62	••	1132
	Djoleto, Fred Badu								••	9767164	••	1139
	Dor-Ahiable, Newton	• •			• •				•••	7723/W/50	••	1143
	Dowuona, Thomas G. Norte	у							••	4703/44	••	1146
	Ellison, Emmanuel Wilson									4422/31/42	••	1147 1155
38.	Eshun, Margaret		• •	••			• •			7403/40	••	1155
39.	Gadzo, David Tsaale	• •	••	• •	• •	••				2936/55		1165
40.	Gboloo, Benjamin Kofi	••			••			• •		7755/50	••	1169
41.	Godzi, John Kosivi	••						••		2513/55	••	1173
	Gyansah, Henry Apau	•••		· •	• •			••		5087/45		1176
	Gyimah-Boateng, Johnson	••			••		••	••		7078/49		1177
	Lamptey, Archibald Lantei	• ·	• •	. •		••		••	••	10024/52		1206
	Martey, Ernest Okoe	• •	• •	••		••	••	••	••	5794/47		1218
46.	Mensah, Thomas Kwaku	• •					••	••	••	4480/R/43		1222

Theyara

ESTABLISHMENT SECRETARIAT-CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING CENTRE

VACANCIES FOR STAFF TRAINING OFFICER (GENERAL)

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment to the pensionable grade of Staff Training Officer (General) in the Training Division of the Establishment Secretariat.

Salary Scale .- NQ1,488-NQ2,124; NQ2,208-NQ2,580; NQ2,676-NQ3,108.

(The entry point in the salary scale of selected candidates will be determined according to candidates' post-qualification experience.)

Duties.—The Staff Training Officer (General) is responsible for the instruction of Departmental Training Officers, Supervisors, Executive and Clerical Officers who attend courses of instruction at the Civil Service Training Centre. In addition, he may be required to visit Departments and Regions to assist Departmental Training Officers in the training of their officers. The subjects taught include registry duties, general office procedure, minute-writing, office management and supervision, government regulations, etc. etc.

Qualifications.-Candidates must:

- (a) be pensionable officers in the grade of Senior Executive Officer or Personnel Officer and above;
- (b) have a good general education, a sound knowledge of government regulations and the various duties of the Executive, Personnel and Clerical Classes, and must have a marked interest in, and aptitude for teaching. (Previous experience in teaching will be an advantage but that is not essential); and
- (c) have a confident manner, likeable personality and must be prepared to equip themselves for training duties for which they must have a feeling of vocation.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra and from Regional Administrative Offices. Completed forms may however be returned to the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra, not later than 17th September, 1971. Serving Officers should submit their applications through their Heads of Departments. Persons under bond to serve in a particular capacity are not eligible.

ADVANCED TEACHER TRAINING COLLEGE, WINNEBA

VACANCY FOR VICE-PRINCIPAL

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment as Vice-Principal, Advanced Teacher Training College, Winneba.

Qualifications.—Graduates of recognised Universities with, at least, 5 years' postgraduation experience or graduate certificated teachers with over 20 years' pre-graduation teaching experience plus 2 years' post-graduation teaching experience; those with, at least, 5 years' pre-graduation teaching experience must have, at least, 3 years' postgraduation teaching experience and those with between 3 and 5 years' pre-graduation teaching experience must have at least 4 years' post-graduation teaching experience.

Salary Scale .--- NØ3,228-NØ3,720.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra and the Regional Administrative Offices. Completed forms, however, should be returned to the Secretary, Public Services Commission, Accra not later than 4th September, 1971. Public servants should forward their applications through their Heads of Departments/Institutions/Organisations. Copies only of supporting documents should be sent.

BUREAU OF GHANA LANGUAGES

VACANCIES FOR ASSISTANT PUBLICATIONS OFFICER (EWE) AND (NZEMA)

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment as Assistant Publications Officer (Ewe) and (Nzema) in the Bureau of Ghana Languages.

Salary Scale .--- NØ1,488-NØ2,124.

Dutles.—To assist in the preparation of manuscripts for School textbooks and books for general reading, and in the translation of literature into the chosen language.

GHANA RAILWAY AND PORTS

LOSS OF CREDIT VOUCHER

The undermentioned Value Book has been reported missing and hereby declared invalid :----

RAILWAY TRAFFIC CREDIT VOUCHER NOS. 71751-71800.

Any member of the public having or acquiring knowledge of the Vouchers described above is asked to communicate immediately with the nearest Police Station and also with the Chief Accountant, Ghana Railway and Ports, P.O. Box 206, Takoradi.

LOSS OF STORE LICENCES

It is notified for public information that store (i.e. spirit) licences Nos. 243001–243050, 244001–244050, 248951–249000 and 249001–249050 are missing from the office of the Controller and Accountant-General.

Any person coming into possession of or having information regarding them should kindly report to the nearest Treasury Officer, Police Station or the Controller and Accountant-General, P.C. Box M.79, Accra.

LOSS OF BAILIFF'S RECEIPT BOOK

It is notified for public information that Bailiff's receipts Nos. 15991-16000 (one book) are reported lost from the District Court, Kumasi.

Any person coming into possession of or having information regarding them should kindly report to the Judicial Secretary, Accra or the Registrar, District Court, Kumasi or to the nearest Treasury Officer, Police Station or the Controller and Accountant-General, P.O. Box M.79, Accra.

ESTABLISHMENT SECRETARIAT-CIVIL SERVICE TRAINING CENTRE VACANCIES FOR STAFF TRAINING OFFICER (ENGLISH)

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment to the pensionable grade of Staff Training Officer (English) in the Training Division of the Establishment Secretariat.

Salary Scale .- NO1,488-NO2,124; NO2,208-NO2,580; NO2,676-NO3,108.

(The entry point in the salary scale of selected candidates will be determined according to candidates' post-qualification experience.)

Duties.—Staff Training Officers (English) are required to teach English at the Civil Service Training Centre or some other Civil Service institutions as directed from time to time.

Qualifications .- Candidates who must be Ghanaians must:

- (a) possess the Associateship Certificate in Education or its equivalent, such as the Specialist Certificate of the Advanced Teacher Training College, Winneba;
- (b) have had 3 years' teaching experience in English after obtaining the above qualification, and
- (c) be at least 30 years of age but have not reached their 45th birthday.

"Transfer" terms will be arranged for selected candidates at present teaching in approved Institutions.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra and from Regional Administrative Offices. Completed forms may however be returned to the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra not later than 17th September, 1971. Serving officers should submit their applications through their Heads of Departments. Persons under bond to serve in a particular capacity are not eligible.

GHANA INSTITUTE OF MANAGEMENT AND PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION

VACANCY FOR PRIVATE SECRETARY

Applications are invited for the posts of

(A) PRIVATE SECRETARY

Qualifications:

Oualifications:

- (i) must possess the minimum educational qualification of School Certificate with credit in English Language or an approved equivalent;
- (ii) must be able to type at the rate of 60 words a minute for 10 minutes, and take shorthand at the rate of 120 words a minute for 5 minutes, and possess a certificate issued by the Government Secretarial School, or any other recognised institution for (a) Advanced Secretarial Practice and (b) General Knowledge;
- (iii) must have a high sense of responsibility, initiative and integrity and a good working knowledge of office management; and
- (iv) must have at least three years' experience as Stenographer/Secretary.

Salary Scale.-NC1,750 x NC80-NC2,470.

(B) STENOGRAPHER/SECRETARY

- (i) candidates must possess the minimum educational qualification of School Certificate with credit in English Language, or an approved equivalent;
- (ii) must be able to type at the rate of 50 words a minute for 10 minutes and take shorthand at the rate of 110 words a minute for 5 minutes and must have a certificate in Elementary Secretarial Practice issued by the Government Secretarial School or any other recognised body;
- (iii) must possess a sense of responsibility, initiative, integrity and discretion, and a good working knowledge of office routine and the ability to take minutes at meetings.

Salary Scale.--- NØ1,300 x NØ60-NØ1,840.

Application forms can be obtained from The Secretary, Ghana Institute of Management and Public Administration. P.O. Box 50, Achimota.

Closing Date: 11th September, 1971.

CROPS RESEARCH INSTITUTE-(COUNCIL FOR SCIENTIFIC AND INDUSTRIAL RESEARCH)

VACANCY FOR AGRICULTURAL ENGINEER

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for the post of Agricultural Engineer.

Qualifications .- A good B.Sc. Degree in Agricultural or Mechanical Engineering from a recognised University plus at least two years' experience in agricultural engineering duties in an agricultural Organisation; or National Diploma in Agricultural Engincering or any other equivalent qualification from a recognised Institution plus at least three years' experience in Agricultural Engineering duties. Postgraduate experience would be an advantage.

Duties .- The Successful candidate will be in charge of the Institute's Farm Mechanization and Transport Services at the main station (Kwadaso-Kumasi) and on all outstations. He will also be expected to assist Agronomists in field investigations.

Salary.-To be negotiated on basis of qualifications and experience in scale NC2,720 x NC120-NC3,560 x NC180-NØ4,640; NØ4,800 (Under Review)-Superannuated.

Application forms obtainable from the Director, Crops Research Institute, P.O. Box 3785, Kumasi. Closing Date: 30th August, 1971.

THE WEST AFRICAN EXAMINATIONS COUNCIL

CANCELLATION OF COMPETITIVE EXAMINATION FOR PROMOTION TO THE GRADE OF SENIOR TEACHER-1972

The Ministry of Education has asked us not to conduct the above examination in 1972.

2. We regret to announce therefore that the advertisement inviting applications for forms is hereby cancelled.

T. BOATIN Senior Deputy Registrar Qualifications.—Candidates must possess:

- (i) Teachers Certificate 'A' or the West African School Certificate with credit in the chosen language or its equivalent; and
- (ii) have at least 8 years' post-qualifying experience in literary and/or editorial work. Candidates will be required to pass a written test in English and in the chosen language and an interview.

Application forms are obtainable from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra, to whom they should be returned not later than 30th September, 1971. Copies only of supporting documents should be forwarded. Public Servants should apply through their Heads of Departments. Persons under bond to serve in a specific capacity are not eligible.

BEREKUM TRAINING COLLEGE

VACANCY FOR VICE-PRINCIPAL

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment to the post of Vice-Principal, Berekum Training College, Berekum.

Qualifications.—Graduates of recognised Universities with, at least, 5 years' postgraduation teaching experience or graduate certificated teachers with over 20 years' pre-graduation teaching experience plus 2 years' postgraduation teaching experience; those with, at least, 5 years' pre-graduation teaching experience must have, at least, 3 years' post-graduation teaching experience and those with between 3 and 5 years, pre-graduation teaching experience must have, at least, 4 years' postgraduation teaching experience.

Salary Scale.—NØ3,228-NØ3,720.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra as well as from the Regional Administrative Offices. Completed forms should, however, be returned to the Secretary, Public Services Commission, Accra not later than 10th September, 1971. Public servants should send their applications through their Heads of Departments/Institutions/Organisations. Copies only of supporting documents should be sent.

VACANCIES FOR HEADMASTERS OF SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Applications are invited from suitably qualified persons for appointment as Headmasters for the following new Secondary Schools:--

- 1. Nkroful Secondary School-Nkroful, Western Region
- 2. Antoa Secondary School-Antoa, Ashanti Region
- 3. Kintampo Secondary School-Kintampo, Brong-Ahafo Region
- 4. Damongo Secondary School-Damongo, Northern Region.

Qualifications.—Graduates of recognised Universities with, at least, 7 years' postgraduation teaching experience or graduate certificated teachers with over 20 years' pre-graduation teaching experience plus at least 4 years' postgraduation teaching experience; those with, at least, 5 years' pre-graduation teaching experience must have, at least, 5 years' postgraduation teaching experience must have, at least, 5 years' postgraduation teaching experience must have, at least, 6 years' postgraduation teaching experience must have, at least, 6 years' postgraduation teaching experience must have, at least, 6 years' postgraduation teaching experience must have, at least, 6 years' postgraduation teaching experience.

Salary Scale.---NØ3,588--NØ5,160.

Non-taxable responsibility allowance according to student enrolment is payable.

Application forms may be obtained from the Secretary, Public Services Commission, P.O. Box 1618, Accra or the Regional Administrative Offices. Completed forms should, however, be returned to the Secretary, Public Services Commission, Accra not later than 10th September, 1971. Candidates already in the Public Service should send their completed forms through their Heads of Departments/Institutions/Organisations.